
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Monday, 24th October, 2005 

Time: 2.00 p.m. 

Place: No 1 Committee Room, Shirehall, 
St Peters Square, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Members' Services, Tel:01432 
260 460 Fax:01432 260286 

e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
To: Councillor J.H.R. Goodwin (Chairman) 

Councillor  W.L.S. Bowen (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors P.J. Dauncey, K.G. Grumbley, J.G.S. Guthrie, T.W. Hunt, 

J.W. Newman, Ms. G.A. Powell, Miss F. Short and J.B. Williams 
 

  
  
 Pages 
  

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     

 To receive apologies for absence.  

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     

 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 
place of a Member of the Committee. 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 
the Agenda. 

 

4. MINUTES   1 - 6  

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 26th September, 
2005. 

 

5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 
FUTURE SCRUTINY   

  

 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 
Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
(Please refer to the Public Information pages in this agenda) 

 

6. BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK   7 - 10  

 To note progress upon the preparation of the Council Biodiversity Strategic 
Framework and actions in hand to support related activity. 

 

7. SECOND REVIEW OF THE VOLUNTARY CODE OF PRACTICE FOR 
THE USE OF POLYTUNNELS IN HEREFORDSHIRE   

11 - 20  

 To consider whether revisions are needed to the code of practice in the 
light of experience through the growing season of 2005. 

 

8. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING   21 - 28  

 To advise Members on the progress of the 2005/06 Capital Programme for 
Environment Areas within the overall context of the Herefordshire Council 
Capital Programme. 
 
 

 



 

9. ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING   29 - 36  

 To advise Members of the revenue budget monitoring position for the 
Environment Programme Area budgets for the period to 30th September 
2005.   

 

10. BEST VALUE REVIEWS - IMPLEMENTATION OF IMPROVEMENT 
PLANS   

37 - 54  

 To report the remaining actions and the exceptions to the programmed 
progress in the improvement plans resulting from the reviews of 
Commercial Enforcement, Development Control, Public Conveniences, and 
Public Rights of Way. 

 

11. MONITORING OF 2005/2006 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - APRIL 
2005 TO SEPTEMBER 2005   

55 - 60  

 To update Members on the exceptions to the targeted progress made by 
the Environment Directorate for the six months April to September 2005 
towards achieving the performance indicators / targets which appear in the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and are reported bi-monthly. 

 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 

before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 

by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 
 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 
Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

SHIREHALL, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point in the main car park 
at the rear of the building.  A check will be undertaken to ensure 
that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford on Monday, 26th September, 2005 at 
10.00 a.m. 

Present: Councillor J.H.R. Goodwin (Chairman) 
Councillor  W.L.S. Bowen (Vice Chairman) 

Councillors: P.J. Dauncey, K.G. Grumbley, J.G.S. Guthrie, T.W. Hunt, 
J.W. Newman, R. Preece and J.B. Williams 

In attendance: Councillors J.W. Edwards, P.J. Edwards, Cabinet Member 
(Environment), D.J. Fleet, T.M. James, J.C. Mayson, R.J. Phillips, 
J. Stone, J.P. Thomas, D.B. Wilcox, Cabinet Member (Highways and 
Transportation), and R.M. Wilson.

21. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 Apologies were received from Councillors G.W. Davis and Miss F. Short.

22. NAMED SUBSTITUTES  

 Councillor R. Preece substituted for Councillor Miss F Short.

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillors: WLS Bowen, JW Edwards, JHR Goodwin, KG Grumbley and JGS 
Guthrie declared personal interests as members of local Internal Drainage Boards.

24. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meting held on 8th August, 2005 be 
approved and signed by the Chairman.

Arising from resolution part b) of minute Item No. 19 (Presentation by Cabinet 
Member Highways and Transport) – which referred to a forthcoming meeting 
between the Director of Environment and the Director of the Highways Agency, the 
Director of Environment briefly reported that he had had a reasonably successful 
meeting with the Director of the Highways Agency and notes of that meeting would 
be circulated to Members.  The Director planned to hold further meetings with the 
agency on a quarterly basis.

25. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 
SCRUTINY

 No public suggestions had been received.

26. FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT OF HEREFORDSHIRE'S MAIN RIVERS  

 The Committee considered the Environment Agency’s management of flood risk on 
main rivers in Herefordshire. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2005 

The Chairman reminded the Committee that the Environment Agency (EA) was the 
Land Drainage Authority for Herefordshire and had responsibility for the 
management of main rivers such as the Wye, Lugg, Team, Monnow and Arrow.  The 
Committee had requested an opportunity to receive a presentation from the Agency 
and to seek clarification of the Agency’s roles, responsibilities and activities in 
Herefordshire.

The Chairman introduced Tim England, South East Area Flood Manager – EA 
Wales; Martin Cadogan, Asset Systems Management Team Leader and Angela 
Gray, Project Manager for Hereford Flood Alleviation Scheme. 

The following are the principal points made by Mr Tim England during his 
presentation to the Committee on Flood Management by the Environment Agency: 

• The role of the Agency had changed over the years from land drainage to 
Flood Risk Management; 

• He gave a brief overview of the legal history concerning the subject and 
highlighted the change in emphasis following the 1998/2000 major floods. 

• He outlined the current flood defence and coastal defence organisations; the 
policy responsibility; principal legislation and organisational responsibility. 

• The Agency’s role included flood risk mapping; flood forecasting and warning; 
regulation; maintenance; flood alleviation schemes and acting as the 
reservoir regulatory Authority. 

• Flood Risk Mapping involved the identification of the flood plain using historic 
data and hydraulic modelling.  This mapping would enable the identification 
of risk areas, inform planning processes and the public.  The Agency also 
used the mapping to consider the best risk management approach.   The 
Committee were shown examples of Lidar Survey based data maps.  Lidar 
involved aerial survey mapping, which can then be overlaid with Ordnance 
Survey and other information. 

• The Agency undertook monitoring and forecasting of likely situations.  This 
was done by a variety of methods including strategically placed rain and river 
gauges and information from the Metrological Office.  This enabled them to 
disseminate warnings; initiate their own operational response; raise public 
awareness and alert professional partners, such as the local authority, and 
emergency services. 

• The Regulatory function involved liaison with Local Authority Planning and 
Development Control sections; the regulation of third party works on or near 
watercourses; the issue of Discharge Consents and Abstraction Licensing. 

• He emphasised that in most cases the landowner was responsible for 
watercourse maintenance.  However, the Agency did have powers, usually 
used in accordance with the principles of risk management, to clear 
blockages i.e. tree debris under bridges, the revetment of embankments; 
renewal of pumping station equipment and channel capacity schemes i.e. 
tree or soil removal. 

• Flood Alleviation schemes were only considered as a last choice option.  If, in 
accordance with risk management criteria, schemes were considered 
necessary they may include embankments; walls; diversion channels; 
pumping stations or a combination of these. 

• As of October 2004, The Water Act 2003 transferred responsibility for 
enforcement of the Reservoirs Act to the Agency thereby ensuring a 
consistent approach to enforcement. 

Following the presentation the Committee questioned the Agency representatives on 
a number of issues.  The following indicate the principal points made: 

2



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2005 

1. Responding to how the Agency will apply its resources and expertise across 
the national boundary to ensure that Herefordshire was not disadvantaged by 
the recent reorganisation within the Agency, the Committee noted that while 
the political and budgetary responsibilities for the River Wye catchment area 
had changed from the EA Wales to the Midland Region the day to day 
technical work remained with Mr England’s team in the Welsh Region. 

2. Government as part of the review had made changes to the method of local 
representation.  Local representation was now made through the Midland 
Regional Flood Defence Committee.  The 18 seats on the Committee were 
divided between Local Authorities and DEFRA.  Herefordshire, Gloucester 
City and South Gloucestershire had one seat, currently taken by Gloucester.  
Only 6 months of a four-year term had expired.  It was therefore important 
that Herefordshire worked closely with the Gloucester representative to 
ensure that local issues were raised.  Relevant contact details would be 
forwarded to the Head of Highways and Transportation for circulation to 
Members. 

3. Questioned on the funding arrangements and the scope for local schemes to 
be promoted if they did not achieve priority ranking, the Committee were 
informed that following the major floods of 1998 and 2000 government 
funding had increased and, since the review of the agency, funding was now 
received as a block grant.  While priority had been given to capital projects a 
further government review of funding levels was expected.  Local schemes 
could still be promoted at regional level, which, if they didn’t meet national 
funding criteria, may result in funding being raised by local levy. 

4. The extent to which the EA resisted new development in areas of flood risk 
was raised.   The EA responded that, as a statutory consultee, they were 
very effective in their response with advice on new developments.  However, 
the decision on new development rested with the planning authority. 

5. The accuracy of the latest flood risk maps were questioned.  Particular 
reference was made concerning the flood data included as part of the 
Council’s Unitary Development Plan (UDP), the accuracy of which had been 
called into question.  The EA responded that initially maps had been issued 
as a rapid response to the floods of 1998 and 2000 and had lacked accuracy, 
but had been better than anything previously available.  Since then the maps 
were updated regularly with more accurate data as it became available.  
However, the EA were undertaking an 18-month programme to Lidar (aerial 
survey) survey the main rivers within EA Wales, including Herefordshire 
which would provide even greater accuracy.  The Agency agreed to provide a 
copy of the Herefordshire Main Rivers Maps to the Head of Highways and 
Transportation.

6. The Committee were informed that the EA did not have a formal programme 
of meeting Parish Councils, however, the Corporate Section of the EA would 
be happy to meet with such organisations. 

7. In view of the fact that many communities rely on the security of existing flood 
defence systems and the effective management of rivers the EA were asked 
whether they had adequate resources to maintain and, where possible, 
improve the flood defence system in the County.  The EA responded that 
their primary concern in relation to defence systems was to protect life and 
property.  Proposed schemes were evaluated against government financial 
systems and against national priorities.  While road accessibility was a low 

3



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2005 

priority the EA ensured that schemes provided a ‘dry route’ for emergency 
service access.  However this may not be the most appropriate route for the 
local community. 

8. Questioned on the Agency’s work with the farming community to address 
problems associated with agricultural practices e.g. rain run-off; pollution; soil 
erosion; ploughing and planting near watercourse banks, the EA responded 
that the Agricultural Team in the Agency liaised with the farming community 
to minimise these issues. 

9. Responding to what the EA was doing to inform the public and communities 
of the roles and responsibilities of the various agencies, public bodies and 
land owners that had interests in flood and watercourse management and 
what liaison or partnering arrangements were in place to co-ordinate the 
activities of the different agencies, the Committee were informed that while 
liaison was a common problem, the EA had mechanisms in place to address 
this issue. 

10. It was noted that the EA organised local Flood Resilience Groups, comprised 
of representatives from Local Authorities, Emergency Services and major 
local businesses to discuss local flood risk management.   The EA were 
working on improving the degree of private sector input.  Details of the local 
Resilience Group would be forwarded to the Head of Highways and 
Transportation for circulation to Members. 

11. Meetings of the Regional Flood Defence Committee are open to the public. 

12. The EA have powers to remove obstructions or improve the main rivers.  
Responsibility for enforcing the maintenance of minor watercourses rests with 
the Local Authority or the Internal Drainage Board.  However, while the EA 
also have the power to intercede, they preferred to work with the relevant 
body to resolve issues. 

13. The remit of the EA is to administer and enforce flood risk management.  In 
the majority of cases landowners are responsible for the clearance and 
maintenance of watercourses.  The EA will only get directly involved if there 
is a benefit to the maintenance of flood risk.  However, if a Councillor or 
Parish Council have concerns about a local watercourse they can contact the 
EA for advice. 

14. Asked about how the EA reconciled its responsibilities for the environment 
and conservation with its responsibilities for managing key rivers and 
watercourses the EA responded that this was a difficult issue.  It was 
emphasised that every scheme was subject to an environmental assessment 
and had to show value in undertaking it.  It also had to show a potential for 
environmental enhancement.  The Committee noted the improvement works 
by the Fisheries Section of the EA to the River Monnow. 

15. Responding to a number of questions concerning the proposed flood 
defences for the Belmont roundabout area of Hereford (the south bank of the 
River Wye), the EA confirmed that DEFRA had now approved the scheme 
(£4m).  While preliminary work by the EA had started, the main work on site 
could not start until 2007/08.  The EA were already in talks with the 
developers (ASDA) about the design and necessary consents for the defence 
works, which would be provided by the developer.  A number of obstacles still 
had to be overcome, one of which was planning permission for the works, 
which was expected to be submitted in July 2006.   The EA confirmed they 

4



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2005 

were liaising with other agencies, including Welsh Water in relation to sewers 
and drains, in an attempt to provide a comprehensive scheme for the area.  
Hereford was getting a real defence scheme, part of which took into account 
known issues relating to ‘climate change’.  In relation to the protection of the 
north bank or areas around Lower Bullingham there were no proposals to 
undertake defence works.  If in the future finance became available and a 
business case could be made then a scheme may be considered. 

16. Works to the ‘Stank’ at Hampton Bishop and in the vicinity of the Holme Lacy 
Causeway (B4399) had been completed and no further works were planned.  
In the long term the EA may commission a review of the defences in that 
area.

17. The EA confirmed there had been a change in emphasis in the work of the 
Flood Section.  Previously their work had centred on defence, now the 
emphasis was on risk management of the whole catchment.  This may 
involve opening up previously blocked off defences to enable areas to flood 
or the provision of storm water storage areas in urban areas. 

18. Normally it was the responsibility of the Highways Authority to clear debris 
caught under road bridges. 

19. It was noted that historically the river Wye in Hereford had been dredged.  
Questioned on the merits of reintroducing dredging to reduce the likelihood of 
flooding the EA stated that they had investigated this option and, using 
current technology, could find no evidence of any benefit from a flood 
reduction point of view, in reintroducing the practice.  Dredging the river 
would however have conflicting consequences for the leisure use of the river 
e.g. fishing versus boating. 

20. The EA were invited to comment on whether an historical agreement 
governing the management of the dams at Rhyader had to ensure that the 
dams had spare capacity to hold flash flood water, as it was believed this 
wasn’t now being provided for.  The EA commented that they had no 
responsibility for the dams other than to enforce the Reservoirs Act – as 
mentioned in the presentation.  They appreciated the dilemma for the water 
companies in meeting the need to supply water to customers.  It was 
however emphasised that only 10 to 15% of the water in the Wye came from 
the catchment area around the dams. 

21. The EA confirmed that, in common with local authorities, complaints from the 
public could be referred to the Ombudsman. 

The Chairman thanked the EA representatives for attending and answering the 
Committee’s questions.  The Committee would wait with interest to see what 
improvements were brought about by the revised arrangements for the Regional 
Flood Defence Committees.

The meeting ended at 11.52 a.m. CHAIRMAN

5



6



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from William Bloxsome on 01432 261783 
 
 

BiodiversityConservationStrategicFrameworkreport1.doc  

 HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL BIODIVERSITY 
CONSERVATION STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK 

Report By: Director Of Environment 
 

Wards Affected 

 County - wide 

Purpose 

1. To note progress upon the preparation of the Council Biodiversity Strategic 
Framework and actions in hand to support related activity. 

Financial Implications 

2. There are no direct financial costs arising from this report.  A number of actions 
described in the report do however have financial implications but these have been 
covered within existing budgets, through partnership funding or utilising agreed 
processes for funding approval. 

 Background  
3.  Your meeting on 6th June 2005 received a report setting out the strategic objectives 

which should form the basis of a framework for the Council’s work in relation to 
biodiversity conservation.  These are: 
 
1) To work in partnership with other organisations to add value to all our biodiversity 
conservation activities at regional, sub-regional and local levels. 
 
2) To ensure that biodiversity conservation is integrated into the Community Strategy 
(Herefordshire Plan).  
 
3) To promote co-ordinated action to benefit nature conservation by taking a lead role 
in developing, maintaining and implementing a Local Biodiversity Action Plan for 
Herefordshire. 
 
4) To set an example to others through managing as much of our land as possible for 
the benefit of biodiversity. 
 
5) To provide a high quality advisory service enabling planning and other regulatory 
systems to be operated responsibly and effectively. 
 
6) To maintain effective recording, monitoring and reporting mechanisms, including 
contributing to regional commentaries. 
 
7) To provide access to information upon the priority biodiversity habitats and species 
occurring in the County 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

7



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from William Bloxsome on 01432 261783 
 
 

BiodiversityConservationStrategicFrameworkreport1.doc  

8) To promote the benefit of biodiversity conservation and associated actions to local 
communities throughout the County. 

4. Work is progressing upon preparing the Framework Statement.  However it has been 
delayed by other work, more specifically efforts to take advantage of funding 
opportunities and to assess the implications of new advice in relation to biodiversity 
conservation.  These are described in this report. 
 
Working in Partnership 

5. Regular meetings continue to be held with English Nature and Herefordshire Nature 
Trust upon a range of matters including progress in relation to Herefordshire 
Biodiversity Action Plan, Herefordshire Biological Records Centre, Habitat and 
Special Wildlife Site Surveys, and specific projects. The strategic framework will 
provide for these meetings to continue, especially as they have lead to a greater 
understanding between all parties and benefited partnership working.  
 
Biodiversity Conservation and the Community Strategy 

6. Following the publication and circular 04/2001 (DEFRA – Countryside and Rights of 
Way Act 2000) the Government identified Local Biodiversity Action Plans as one of 
the plans that can be subsumed into Community Strategies, as part of the 
rationalisation of local authority plans.  The Environment Ambition Group and 
Environmental Co-ordinator will undertake this task. English Nature has contributed 
to the costs of the Environmental Co-Coordinator post, partly upon the basis that this 
should be one of the tasks undertaken by the post holder and the process and 
actions for achieving integration within the Community Strategy will be a crucial 
component of the strategic framework.  
 
Maintaining and Implementing a Local Biodiversity Action 
Plan for Herefordshire. 

7. Herefordshire Biodiversity Action Plan (HBAP) was published in 2000 and a summary 
of the Council’s contribution to this was set out in a previous report to this Committee. 
An updated HBAP with new targets is soon to be published by Herefordshire 
Biodiversity Partnership. This takes into account regional habitat restoration targets 
for the West Midlands that have recently been published.  

8. The appointment of a Biodiversity Partnership Co-ordinator for a 3-year period has 
been agreed with English Nature, who have entered into a partnership funding 
arrangement with this Council.  The post holder will be charged with completing the 
review of HBAP and facilitating the implementation of its actions. This proposal 
extends the Council’s contribution to the Biodiversity Action Plan process and should 
ensure more effective compliance with Audit Commission advice expressed in their 
Library of Local Performance Indicators. 
 
Managing Council Land For Biodiversity  

9. The previous report on biodiversity conservation referred to the Corporate Plan 
indicator relating to ‘land owned or managed by the Council, that does not have any 
nature conservation designation, but is managed for biodiversity purpose’.  One of 
the tasks for the Biodiversity Partnership Co–ordinator, when appointed, will be to 
work with colleagues within the relevant Divisions of the Council to help them 

8



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from William Bloxsome on 01432 261783 
 
 

BiodiversityConservationStrategicFrameworkreport1.doc  

increase the amount of land within this category. A target has been set to increase 
the extent of the land managed in this way from the present 2.49% to 3.3% in 2009 
and the Strategic Framework will incorporate this as a primary task to be approached 
on a corporate basis. 
 
Biodiversity and Planning Advice  

10. Government has just issued a new Planning Policy Statement (PPS9) on Biodiversity 
and Geological Conservation.  It has also issued an associated circular (ODPM 
06/2005):  ‘Biodiversity and Geological Conservation - Statutory Obligations and their 
Impact within the Planning System’.  The full implications of these have yet to be 
assessed.  However it is clear that biodiversity will have a higher profile as a material 
consideration in planning decisions.  A report will be prepared for the Cabinet 
Member for the Environment upon the staff implications arising from this and also on 
monitoring requirements (see para. 13 below) in the light of the new Government 
provisions in relation to Local Development Frameworks.  

11. Interpreting and disseminating the new Government guidance to relevant officers, 
agents and the public in general will be crucial if efforts to protect biodiversity are to 
be successful. The Strategic Framework will need to indicate how the Council 
proposes to tackle this issue. An interim Supplementary Planning Document on 
Biodiversity has been approved and this will need to be reviewed in the light of PPS9 
and Circular 06/2005. Work to develop a training event for planning officers within the 
Council is also in hand. 
 
Recording, Monitoring and Reporting Mechanisms 

12. This Council and English Nature jointly fund Herefordshire Biological Records Centre 
(HBRC).  The development and maintenance of such centres on a County basis is a 
priority for the national agency. Herefordshire’s record centre is in the third year of its 
establishment phase and a report is being prepared upon its future development and 
operation. 

13. Under the new planning framework, the Council has to monitor the impact of 
development upon (inter-alia) biodiversity within an Annual Monitoring Report.  The 
matters it should report upon include: 
 
1) Change in priority habits and species (by type): and 
 
2) Changes in area designated for their historic environmental value including sites of 
international, national, regional, sub regional and local significance. 

Collecting the relevant data will have resource implications and the Cabinet Member 
will need to be briefed upon this. 
 
Access To Information On Priority Biodiversity Habitats And 
Species. 

14. The Herefordshire Biological Record Centre is developing as the primary source of 
information upon habitats and species within the County.  It relies for such 
information upon voluntary recorders, local nature conservation groups and 
organisations such as Herefordshire Nature Trust and English Nature.  The 
information is used for research and monitoring purposes.  However, one of its key 

9



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from William Bloxsome on 01432 261783 
 
 

BiodiversityConservationStrategicFrameworkreport1.doc  

purposes is to provide information to inform planning and development decisions.  
Accessibility by all concerned in the development process is important. The 
relationship between information providers and those requiring data from the record 
centre is a complex one. The provisions of the Environmental Information 
Regulations add to  this complexity. The strategic framework will set out the Council’s 
approach to making information as freely available as possible and how it would wish 
to see accessibility improved.  
 
Promoting Biodiversity To Communities 

15. Promoting and enabling communities, be they local communities or interest groups, 
to support biodiversity projects and actions will be the key to ensuring that we 
maintain all those wildlife and natural features that are so important to the distinctive 
character of this County.   The Strategic Framework will look to set out the basis for 
the role to be undertaken by this Council in relation to these activities.  The Council 
recently completed the “Herefordshire Lifescapes” project, which was a pilot project 
funded substantially from external sources (LEADER+ and English Nature) to 
investigate how biodiversity and landscape potential might be promoted to local 
communities. Local groups are continuing some of the initiatives instigated through 
the project. Wider opportunities for habitat creation and enhancement have been 
mapped and details will be circulated to parishes in due course. The Forestry 
Commission in their regional forestry work is supporting this approach and other 
groups are also looking at it with interest. The Strategic Framework intends to take 
this approach on board so far as it might be possible. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT  subject to any comments the Committee may wish to make the 
report on the issues being considered for inclusion in the 
Biodiversity Conservation Strategic Framework be noted. 

 

 

Background Papers 

• Biodiversity Conservation Within Herefordshire – Report to the Environment 
Scrutiny Committee, 6th June 2005. 

• Herefordshire Biodiversity action Plan – Herefordshire Biodiversity Partnership, 
2000 

• Draft Review of Herefordshire Biodiversity Action Plan 2005-10, Feb 2005. 

• A Development Plan for Herefordshire Local Biological Record Centre, June 2001. 

10



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from P.J. Yates,  
Development Control Manager on (01432) 261782 

 
Polutunnelreport1.doc  

 SECOND REVIEW OF THE VOLUNTARY CODE OF 
PRACTICE FOR THE USE OF POLYTUNNELS IN 
HEREFORDSHIRE 

Report By: Head of Planning Services 
 

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider whether revisions are needed to the code of practice in the light of 
experience through the growing season of 2005. 

Background 

2. The Environment Scrutiny Committee last considered this matter at their meeting on 23rd 
June 2004. An extensive review by the Polytunnels Review Working Group was 
considered and, in the light of its findings, an updated Code of Practice was forwarded to 
the Cabinet Member (Environment) for approval.  Cabinet on 14th October, 2004 
accepted the findings and, subject to slight amendment, agreed to adopt the revised 
Code of Practice.  Since that time the Code of Practice has been in operation as non-
statutory planning guidance. 

3. The decision by Cabinet to approve the Code of Practice provided for it to be reviewed in 
two years time, i.e. in 2006. This report is, therefore, made at an interim stage with the 
intention of reviewing progress to date along with a brief review of related issues. 

4. The agreed Code of Practice is included at Appendix 1 of this report. 

2004/2005 

Planning Applications 

5. Current practice in Herefordshire is to require planning applications where polytunnels 
are intended to remain in place for over two years or the method of cultivation involves 
plants being grown in bags or on raised beds i.e. they are not being grown in the ground.   
There have been 8 planning applications submitted for Polytunnels in the last 12 months. 
They are:  

AGENDA ITEM 7

11



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from P.J. Yates,  
Development Control Manager on (01432) 261782 

 
Polutunnelreport1.doc  

 

Planning Applications for Polytunnels 2004/05 

Application Location Brief Description Outcome 

Southern Area 
Committee 

    

SW05/2351/F “Asparagus Patch”, 
Blakemere 

1 polytunnel Approved 10/08/05 

Central Area 
Committee 

   

CW04/4212/F Brick House, Bush 
Bank 

2.59 ha of 
polytunnels 

Approved 09/03/05 

CW05/0698/F Marden Polytunnels for 
“Raised Bed” 
cultivation 

Withdrawn pending 
EIA 

CW05/2947/F Brick House, Bush 
Bank 

Renewal of 
permission in 
respect of two 
polytunnels (ref 
CW05/0698) 

(undetermined) 

Northern Area 
Committee 

   

NW04/3669/F Credale Nursery, 
Upper Hill, 
Leominster 

2 polytunnels Approved 22/04/05 

NW04/4304/F Moreton View 
Nursery, Burley 
Gate 

Polytunnel at 
nursery 

Approved 02/02/05 

NE05/0223/F Baddy Marsh 
Farm, Lower 
Eggleton, Ledbury 

27.5m by 16m 
polytunnel 

Approved 05/01/05 

NE05/0283/F Mathon Road, 
Colwall 

Replace polytunnel 
with glasshouse 

Approved 17/03/05  

 

6. The principal issue encountered in the matters referred to above has been the 
polytunnels erected at Marden which was the subject of a retrospective application for 
planning permission.  The application was withdrawn when it became clear that the 
suspected presence of protected species on the site meant that an Environmental 
Impact Assessment (EIA) was required before determination.  The case is awaiting the 
submission of an EIA, which will now have to wait until early spring 2006 due to the 

12



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from P.J. Yates,  
Development Control Manager on (01432) 261782 

 
Polutunnelreport1.doc  

seasonal nature of the species to be studied.  Meanwhile it is anticipated that the 
“plastic” covering of the polytunnels will be removed at the end of the 2005 growing 
season in any event.  The Council’s solicitors consider that it would not be expedient to 
take enforcement action in respect of these polytunnels pending the anticipated re-
submission of the application for planning permission supported by an appropriate EIA.  

Notifications in Accordance with the Code of Practice 

7. Most of the polytunnels in the County have been the subject of notifications in 
accordance with the Code of Practice.  These are cases where the intention is to move 
the polytunnels after a maximum of two years and the crops are grown in the ground. 
Since the Environment Scrutiny Committee in June 2004 there have been 12 
notifications. 

Notifications for Polytunnels since June 2004 
Date 

received 
Location Name Company 

23/09/2004 Wickton Court, Stoke 
Prior Nr Leominster, 

HR1 3ET 

John Davies/Peter Gwynne 

Brook Farm, Marden, 
Hereford, HR1 3ET 

S & A Soft Fruits Ltd 

Brook Farm, Marden, 
Hereford, HR1 3ET 

24/01/2005 Homme Farm, Ross on 
Wye, Hereford, HR9 

7TF 

Eric Drummond 

The Homme, Hom, Green, 
Ross on Wye, HR9 7TF 

Eric Drummond 

28/2/2005 Pencoyd Court Farm, 
Harewood End, 

Hereford, HR2 8JY 

 

AJ & CI Snell 

Pencoyd Court Farm, 
Harewood End, Hereford, 

HR2 8JY 

 

27/01/2005 Lower Hope Livestock 
and Fruit Ltd, 

Ullingswick, HR1 3JF 

 

S.D Wells 

Lower Hope Livestock and 
Fruit Ltd, Ullingswick, HR1 

3JF 

S.D Wells 

31/3/2005 Haygrove Farm, Falcon 
Lane, Ledbury, HR8 

2PY 

 

Mr A Davison 

Redbank, Ledbury, 
Herefordshire, HR8 2JL 

Haygrove Ltd 

Redbank, Ledbury, 
Herefordshire, HR8 

2JL 

18/4/2005 Biddlestone Orchards, 
Llangarron, Ross on 

Wye, HR9 6NT 

R.L Oakeley 

Biddlestone Orchards, 
Llangrove, HR9 6NT 

Biddlestone orchard 

29/3/2005 Drakeley Farm, Marden, 
Hereford 

John Davies/Peter Gwynne 

Brook Farm, Marden, 
Hereford, HR1 3ET 

S & A Produce Ltd 

Brook Farm, Marden, 
Hereford, HR1 3ET 

13



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from P.J. Yates,  
Development Control Manager on (01432) 261782 

 
Polutunnelreport1.doc  

 

28/4/2005 Brick House Farm, 
Canon Pyon, Hereford, 

HR4 8PH 

 

Mr V Powell 

Brick House Farm, Canon 
Pyon, Hereford, HR4 8PH 

 

28/4/2005 Pennoxstone Court 
Farm, Kings Caple, HR1 

4TX 

 

Mr Neil Cockburn 

Pennoxstone Court Farm, 
Kings Caple, HR1 4TX 

 

06/06/2005 Wharton Court, 
Leominster, HR6 0NX 

S&A Soft Fruits Ltd, Brook 
Farm, Marden, Hereford, 

HR1 3ET 

 

02/08/2005 Front Pump Field, Lower 
Hope, Ullingswick, 
Hereford, HR1 3JF 

Lower Hope Fruit Ltd, 
Lower Hope Estate, 

Ullingswick, Hereford 

 

11/08/2005 Wharton Court, 
Leominster, HR6 0NX 

S&A Soft Fruits Ltd, Brook 
Farm, Marden, Hereford, 

HR1 3ET 

 

 

8. In accordance with the code of practice all of the notifications above have been 
submitted on the basis of the polytunnels being present on the same site for no more 
than two years. 

9. In September 2005 the polytunnels listed above covered a total of approximately 183 
hectares (approximately 420 acres). It should be noted however that, in the nature of 
these polytunnels, in many cases they are in different locations from previous years. 

Enforcement Issues 

10. There is currently one Enforcement Case outstanding in the County at Pennoxstone 
Court.  In this case the same farmholding has several areas under polytunnels with 
Code of Practice notifications and one area which is under polytunnels without 
notification.  The landowner has proved reluctant to submit any application and 
enforcement proceedings may yet prove necessary to create a “Deemed Application” for 
the Council to consider. 

11. There is, of course, the outstanding enforcement notice at Brierley Court which was the 
subject of a public local inquiry in July 2005 and concerned both caravans and 
polytunnels.  That case has been called-in by the Secretary of State and until the 
decision is known no further action is appropriate 

Case law 

12. In addition to the Brierley Court case there is also an outstanding case in Waverley 
Borough Council where an enforcement notice concerning caravans and polytunnels is 
currently the subject of a public local inquiry.  The Inspector’s decision, when it is made, 
may help to establish the planning basis for control of polytunnels. 

14



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from P.J. Yates,  
Development Control Manager on (01432) 261782 

 
Polutunnelreport1.doc  

NFU Code of Practice 

13. Members may be interested to note that the National Farmers’ Union has, along with 
British Summer Fruits Ltd., published its own Code of Practice.  The principal 
differences between their Code of Practice and the Herefordshire Code are: 

• The NFU code recommends a minimum distance of 30 metres between 
polytunnels and the nearest dwelling; the Herefordshire Code specifies 50 metres 

• The NFU Code does not recommend a maximum period for polytunnels to remain 
in one location (assuming that they are moved frequently anyway) 

• The NFU code includes no provision for consulting local parishes or other 
interested parties before erecting polytunnels. 

Countryside Agency. 

14. The Countryside Agency has commissioned a consultancy, Entec, to investigate the 
issue of polytunnel development.  The intention is to help the Countryside Agency 
develop its own policy stance on this type of development.  They are currently in the 
process of analysing responses from their own selection of consultees, including local 
planning authorities, but have yet to publish any results. 

Comment 

15. Polytunnels remain a controversial issue due to their large scale and the non-statutory 
basis of the control the Council seeks to exercise through the Code of Practice.  Case 
law may yet provide an improved definition of development which would either bring 
polytunnels fully within planning control or exclude them altogether.  In the meantime the 
legal basis of control has remained unchanged in the past 12 months. 

16. Demand to erect polytunnels will continue for the foreseeable future as they are now an 
essential part of agricultural production for “summer fruits”.  

17. In the absence of a definitive legal definition for when polytunnels come within planning 
control the Code of Practice is the best available means of control.  Interestingly, as part 
of the new development plan system (i.e. the Local Development Framework), pre-
application consultation can be required through the forthcoming Statement of 
Community Involvement.  In this regard the current Code of Practice accords with the 
principles of the new planning system. 

18. NFU/BSF Code of Practice has been developed for the benefit of suppliers and their 
clients and should not be regarded as superior to the Herefordshire Code.  In particular 
it does not require any pre-consultation and would permit polytunnels as close as 30 
metres from the nearest dwelling whereas the Herefordshire Code specifies 50 metres. 

19. It is important to bear in mind that the principal impact, in planning terms, of polytunnels 
is their effect on the landscape.  The Code of Practice seeks to preserve the landscape 
in the long term by requiring the plastic covering to be removed in winter and permitting 
the polytunnels themselves to remain in use on the same site for only two years.  This is 
a pragmatic approach which allows for agricultural production to take place whilst 
preserving the landscape in the long term. 

15



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24TH OCTOBER, 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from P.J. Yates,  
Development Control Manager on (01432) 261782 

 
Polutunnelreport1.doc  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Committee; 

a) note the experience of the past 12 months of operation of the Code 
of Practice; 

b) require a further report in the event of any significant change in 
case law which would change the basis of the current Code of 
Practice 

c) recommend to the Cabinet Member (Environment) that the pre-
consultation requirements of the Code of Practice be incorporated 
into the draft Statement of Community Involvement currently in 
preparation 

d) recommend to the Cabinet Member (Environment) that the Code of 
Practice should continue in operation subject to a full review in 
October 2006 

e) determines any further submission it may wish to make to the 
Cabinet Member (Environment). 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

16



27 OCTOBER, 2004 

APPENDIX 1 
THE HEREFORDSHIRE CODE OF PRACTICE FOR THE TEMPORARY 

AGRICULTURAL USE OF POLYTUNNELS 
 

1. Introduction 
This Code of Practice is intended to apply to the use of temporary polytunnels, which 
consist of metal frames, covered with polythene and where crops are grown in the 
existing soil.  In addition, the Code of Practice is not intended to have effect where, in 
the opinion of Herefordshire Council as Local Planning Authority (LPA) on the facts 
available, that planning permission is required. 

2. The Code of Practice 
The code requires a grower to provide the LPA with information on a Polytunnel 
Checklist.  This information will be used to determine if planning permission is 
required. 

If planning permission is not required the grower undertakes to provide notice to the 
Council confirming that notification has been given to the relevant Parish Council(s) 
and nearby neighbours of the intention to erect polytunnels. 

3. Terms of the Code of Practice 

• Siting of polytunnels will be 50 metres from the nearest elevation of any dwelling 
subject to variation of that distance by agreement with that neighbour. 

• The grower will submit a landscape impact statement accompanied by mitigation 
measures.    This may include the use of less reflective coloured ground cover 
plastic and less luminant polythene (less reflective) on the polytunnels. 

• The grower is encouraged to use less reflective coloured ground cover plastic 
and less luminant polythene (less reflective) on the polytunnels and to make 
provision for screening where appropriate. 

• Siting of polytunnels shall be restricted to 2 years (being a complete season) 
subject to the polythene covering being removed from the frames for a 
minimum period of 6 months in any calendar year.  There shall be no return to 
the land, which has been covered within 2 years. 

• Polytunnel framework shall be removed from the land in accordance with the 
statement on the Polytunnel Checklist.  

• Notice will be given by the grower to the Council confirming written or verbal 
notice has been given to the Parish Council(s) and nearby neighbours.  

Polytunnel users will use all reasonable endeavours to - 

• Avoid disturbance to nearby residents at unsociable hours.  
By best management practice avoid noise nuisance to nearby residents from 
unsecured polythene, pumps or other activity sources. 

• Store unused polythene away from public view, waste polythene to be removed 
from the land and be recycled. 

Compliance with the terms of this code will bring benefits to growers, residents who 
live near to polytunnel sites and Herefordshire Council, in terms of information and 
notice. 

Herefordshire Council as Local Planning Authority will regard compliance with terms 
of the Herefordshire Code of Practice as a material consideration when investigating 
any complaint or consideration as to the expediency of instigating enforcement 
action.  

17



27 OCTOBER, 2004 

 POLYTUNNEL CHECKLIST 
The purpose of this checklist is to provide Planning Services with information on which to 
advise a grower on the need for planning permission.  If it is clear from the information provided by the 
grower that planning permission is required the code of practice does not apply.  A separate checklist 
form should be completed for each location where a grower wishes to erect polytunnels. 

Name and address of applicant 

Full name ..............................................................  

Address .................................................................  

................................................................................  

.........................................  Postcode .....................  

Tel. No. .......................... …………………………. 

Site of Polytunnel (if different) 

Address ..................................................................

................................................................................

................................................................................

................................................................................

........................................  Postcode .....................

 

1. Approximate date erection of polytunnels commencing:  

2. Overall size of farm:  

3. Type of crop:  

4. Method of growing – in ground, grow bag on the ground 
or off-ground: 

 

5a). Area covered by polythene b) height of polytunnel 
c) method of irrigation     d) any other services connected 
e.g. electricity. 

a)                                  b) 
c)                                   d) 

6. Expected period of time polythene to be in position  

7a. Approximate date of removal of metal hoops, fixings 
and frames from land: 
7b. Written confirmation that land has been cleared shall 
be sent to Planning Services within one month of 7a. 

 

8. Method of disposal of waste polythene:  

9. Location plan enclosed: Yes / No 

10. Submission of a landscape impact statement to 
include a map showing where polytunnels can be viewed 
from and proposed mitigation measures. E.g. leaving 
hedges untrimmed, erecting grey/green mesh wind 
breaks, tree planting. 

 
 

Do you wish the information provided to remain 
confidential 

Yes / No 

 

 Signed ................................................................................................................................ (Applicant/Agent) 

 Date ................................................................................................................................................................  

Notice may be sent to the Local Planning Authority by Fax: 01432 261970, or to: Planning 
Services, PO Box 230, Blueschool House, Blueschool Street, Hereford, HR1 2ZB. 

 

18



27 OCTOBER, 2004 

 
 NOTICE TO HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

 

 

From: 
 

If you have any comments to make or wish to 
discuss my proposal please telephone: 

 

 

 

 

Prior notice of the proposed erection of polytunnels 
at: 

 

Expected date of erection: 
 

Expected date of removal: 
 

I confirm I have notified the relevant Parish 
Council(s) and near neighbours 

 

Signed: ……………………………………… 

Dated:……………………………………….. 

 

 

Please send this notice to Planning Services, Herefordshire Council, Blueschool 
House, Blueschool Street, Hereford, HR1 2ZB, or by fax: 01432 261970. 

19



20



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 OCTOBER 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch on 01432 260227 
CapitalBudgetMonitoringreport0.doc  

 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 

Report By: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT 
 

Purpose 

1. To advise Members on the progress of the 2005/06 Capital Programme for 
Environment Areas within the overall context of the Herefordshire Council Capital 
Programme.  

Financial Implications 

2. Capital Budgets for the Environment Programme Areas for 2005/06 are shown in 
Appendix 1, on an individual basis, with funding arrangements indicated in overall 
terms.  

3. The total of the Capital Programme has been decreased from £13,461,000 notified to 
the previous meeting (see Appendix 1) to £12,047,000.  This is a net reduction of 
£1,414,000. The project in relation to City Centre Enhancements for £2,000,000 has 
transferred to Economic Development Capital Programme and a number of relatively 
minor changes have increased the Programme by £586,000. 

 
Considerations 

5 The report has been largely based on the latest round of capital monitoring, which 
involved an examination of all schemes at the end of September 2005.  Care is being 
taken to ensure the forecast spend accurately reflects the expected spend in 
2005/06.  The overall spending position is being kept under careful review by the 
Environment General capital-working Group.  

6. The actual spend against each scheme is shown as at 30th September 2005. 

7.  The total spent or committed to 30th September is £6.171 million or 51.2% of the 
Revised Forecast.    The actual amount spent is £3.768 million.  

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comments the Committee may wish to make the 
report be noted.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

21



22



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

20
05

/0
6 

 
O

rig
in

al
 B

ud
ge

t 
20

05
/0

6 
R

ev
is

ed
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 a
s 

at
 

30
th

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
Sp

en
d/

 K
no

w
n 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
%

 S
pe

nt
/ 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

LO
C

A
L 

TR
A

N
SP

O
R

T 
PL

A
N

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 

W
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 A
cc

es
s 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ed

es
tri

an
 C

ro
ss

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
5 

6 
1 

10
 

16
6.

7 

P
ed

es
tri

an
 R

ou
te

 &
 D

is
ab

le
d 

A
cc

es
s 

Im
ps

 
70

 
60

 
(1

0)
 

60
 

10
0.

0 

C
yc

lin
g 

 
 

 
 

 

C
yc

le
 N

et
w

or
k 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
20

0 
10

0 
(1

00
) 

14
 

14
.0

 

Pu
bl

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 M
in

or
 S

ch
em

es
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
us

 P
rio

rit
y 

M
ea

su
re

s 
50

 
11

0 
60

 
7 

6.
4 

P
as

se
ng

er
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
R

ai
l 

35
 

10
 

(2
5)

 
- 

- 

P
as

se
ng

er
 W

ai
tin

g 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

30
 

30
 

- 
(3

) 
-1

0.
0 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 R
id

e 
 

 
 

 
 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

R
id

e 
20

 
20

 
- 

11
 

55
.0

 

P
ar

k 
an

d 
R

id
e 

S
ite

s 
an

al
ys

is
 

40
 

40
 

- 
15

 
37

.5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ot

he
rw

as
 M

in
or

 S
ch

em
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ot

he
rw

as
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 A
cc

es
s 

50
 

50
 

- 
3 

6.
0 

R
ot

he
rw

as
 A

cc
es

s 
R

oa
d 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ot

he
rw

as
 A

cc
es

s 
R

oa
d 

26
0 

27
0 

10
 

28
6 

10
5.

9 

 

23



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

rig
in

al
 B

ud
ge

t 
20

05
/0

6 
R

ev
is

ed
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 a
s 

at
 

30
th

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
Sp

en
d/

 K
no

w
n 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
%

 S
pe

nt
/ 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

R
om

an
 R

oa
d 

 
 

 
 

 

R
om

an
 R

oa
d 

93
3 

1,
07

4 
14

1 
1,

01
7 

94
.7

 

H
er

ef
or

d 
S

tra
te

gy
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

40
 

40
 

- 
8 

20
.0

 

R
ur

al
 to

w
ns

 a
nd

 M
ar

ke
t T

ow
ns

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 

W
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 A
cc

es
s 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ed

es
tri

an
 a

nd
 D

is
ab

le
d 

A
cc

es
s 

Im
ps

 
20

 
30

 
10

 
34

 
11

3.
3 

R
ur

al
 F

oo
tw

ay
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

60
 

12
0 

60
 

36
 

30
.0

 

C
yc

lin
g 

 
 

 
 

 

N
et

w
or

k 
of

 C
yc

le
 R

ou
te

s 
an

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 

20
0 

91
 

(1
09

) 
8 

8.
8 

Pu
bl

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 M
in

or
 S

ch
em

es
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ub

lic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

A
cc

es
s 

P
oi

nt
s 

50
 

20
 

(3
0)

 
7 

35
.0

 

R
ur

al
 R

ai
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
40

 
10

 
(3

0)
 

2 
20

.0
 

P
as

se
ng

er
 W

ai
tin

g 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

40
 

40
 

 
30

 
75

.0
 

N
or

th
 W

es
t H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 H
G

V 
St

ud
y 

(F
or

m
er

ly
 P

em
br

id
ge

 B
yp

as
s)

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

th
 W

es
t H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 H
G

V
 S

tu
dy

 
46

 
41

 
(5

) 
- 

- 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ea

rt
s 

an
d 

M
in

ds
 

 
 

 
 

 

Tr
av

el
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 
35

 
35

 
- 

33
 

94
.3

 

S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ve

l S
up

po
rt 

25
 

25
 

- 
25

 
10

0.
0 

 

24



 
 

O
rig

in
al

 B
ud

ge
t 

20
05

/0
6 

R
ev

is
ed

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 a

s 
at

 
30

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
Sp

en
d/

 K
no

w
n 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
%

 S
pe

nt
/ 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

M
in

or
 S

af
et

y 
Sc

he
m

es
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
in

or
 S

af
et

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

30
0 

30
0 

- 
19

6 
65

.3
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

al
m

in
g 

 
 

 
 

 

Tr
af

fic
 C

al
m

in
g 

15
0 

80
 

(7
0)

 
64

 
80

.0
 

Sa
fe

r R
ou

te
s 

to
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
af

er
 R

ou
te

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 in
c 

20
m

ph
 z

on
es

38
0 

22
0 

(1
60

) 
12

3 
55

.9
 

Sp
ee

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
af

et
y 

C
am

er
as

 
 

27
 

27
 

27
 

10
0.

0 

V
ill

ag
e 

S
pe

ed
 R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
 

40
 

50
 

10
 

37
 

74
.0

 

V
eh

ic
le

 A
ct

iv
at

ed
 S

ig
ns

 
20

 
20

 
- 

11
 

55
.0

 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

 
 

 
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

40
 

40
 

- 
12

 
30

.0
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
W

or
k 

20
 

20
 

- 
1 

5.
0 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
ap

ita
lis

ed
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f P
rin

ci
pa

l 
R

oa
ds

 
2,

61
0 

1,
09

5 
(1

,5
15

) 
54

5 
49

.7
 

C
ap

ita
lis

ed
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f N
on

 P
rin

ci
pa

l 
R

oa
ds

 
3,

30
9 

4,
84

3 
1,

53
4 

2,
68

0 
55

.3
 

Fo
ot

w
ay

s 
39

0 
60

0 
21

0 
32

7 
54

.5
 

B
rid

ge
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
ap

ita
lis

ed
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t &
 S

tre
ng

th
 o

f 
B

rid
ge

s 
65

0 
65

0 
- 

42
5 

65
.4

 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
ta

ff 
co

st
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
ov

er
 L

TP
 

30
1 

30
1 

- 
- 

- 

25



  
  

O
rig

in
al

 B
ud

ge
t 

20
05

/0
6 

R
ev

is
ed

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 a

s 
at

 
30

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
Sp

en
d/

 K
no

w
n 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
%

 S
pe

nt
/ 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

N
on

 L
TP

 S
C

H
EM

ES
 

 
 

 
 

 

H
er

ef
or

d 
C

re
m

at
or

iu
m

 
54

7 
54

7 
- 

4 
0.

7 

Le
om

in
st

er
 C

lo
se

d 
La

nd
fil

l M
on

ito
rin

g 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

22
0 

22
0 

- 
8 

3.
6 

E
xt

en
si

on
 to

 H
er

ef
or

d 
C

em
et

er
y 

20
 

20
 

- 
55

 
27

5.
0 

P
ub

lic
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

21
5 

21
5 

- 
25

 
11

.6
 

C
ity

 C
en

tre
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 
2,

00
0 

- 
(2

,0
00

) 
 

 

G
ra

fto
n 

Tr
av

el
le

rs
 S

ite
 

 
40

0 
40

0 
- 

- 

C
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

Ji
gs

aw
 

- 
28

 
28

 
28

 
10

0.
0 

W
as

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 &

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

- 
74

 
74

 
- 

- 

S
al

t B
ar

n 
- 

75
 

75
 

- 
- 

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E 
13

,4
61

 
12

,0
47

 
(1

,8
14

) 
6,

17
1 

51
.2

 

26



 
  

O
rig

in
al

 B
ud

ge
t 

20
05

/0
6 

R
ev

is
ed

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 a

s 
at

 
30

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 

 
 

 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
 

 
 

FU
N

D
IN

G
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
up

po
rte

d 
C

ap
ita

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 R
ev

en
ue

 
10

,4
59

 
10

,4
59

 
 

 
 

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g 
2,

87
5 

87
5 

 
 

 

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g 
S

lip
pa

ge
 c

ar
rie

d 
ov

er
 fr

om
 2

00
4/

05
 

12
7 

12
7 

 
 

 

Tr
af

fic
 C

al
m

in
g 

D
ev

el
op

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
 

44
 

 
 

 

B
us

 P
rio

rit
y 

S
ch

em
e 

 
3 

 
 

 

S
af

et
y 

C
am

er
as

 
 

27
 

 
 

 

W
as

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 &

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 G

ra
nt

 
 

74
 

 
 

 

C
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

Ji
gs

aw
 

- 
28

 
 

 
 

G
ra

fto
n 

Tr
av

el
le

rs
 S

ite
 

 
30

0 
 

 
 

C
ap

ita
l R

ec
ei

pt
s 

R
es

er
ve

 
- 

11
0 

 
 

 

TO
TA

L 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE
 

13
,4

61
 

12
,0

47
 

 
 

 

 

27



28



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 OCTOBER 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Graham Dunhill on 01432 260041 
 

 ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 

Report By: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT  
 

Purpose 

1. To advise Members of the budget monitoring position for the Environment 
Programme Area budgets for the period to 30th September 2005.  The report lists the 
variations against budget at this stage in the year.  

Financial Implications 

2. It is expected that all budget variances will be contained within the overall 2005/06 
Revenue Budget for Environment.   

Considerations 

3. The detailed report on Budget Monitoring is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ 
consideration.  

4. The total Environment Budget for 2005/06 has increased from the amount reported to 
the last meeting of the Committee which was £23,892,000 to £24,093,980.  

5. The Budget for 2005/06 incorporates net underspending of £491,000 brought forward 
from 2004/05 from Highways and Transportation (-£439,000), Environmental Health 
and Trading Standards (£170,000) and Planning (£760,000). This excludes any 
underspending or overspending on the Waste Management PFI contract which is 
transferred to reserves. 

Highways and Transportation  

6. This service area was previously known as Environment General. Budgets for Waste 
Management, Cemeteries, Crematorium and Travellers Sites have been transferred 
to Environmental Health and Trading Standards (previously known as Environment 
Regulatory). 

7. It is anticipated that Winter Maintenance costs could exceed the budget by £200,000 
in the event of a standard winter. This overspending together with expenditure 
incurred in relation to Emergency Maintenance of £150,000 will need to be met by 
Road Maintenance budget for 2005/06.  These budgets are also experiencing 
significant pressures in the areas of verge and drainage maintenance which leaves 
expenditure on Roads Maintenance for 2005/06 very tight.  Programmes are being 
reviewed to contain spending within the maintenance budgets.  

8. The income budget for Car Parking looks likely to exceed its income target by 
£200,000 however there is a slight fall in the expected income from De-criminalised 
Parking of £30,000. 

9. With forthcoming renegotiation of contracts in relation to Public Transport, an 
overspending of £35,000 is expected in 2005/06 rising to £250,000 in 2006/07. Some 
of these additional costs can be mitigated by the increase in Car Parking income. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

29



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 OCTOBER 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Graham Dunhill on 01432 260041 
 

10.  It is anticipated that expenditure on Street Cleansing could exceed budget by 
£160,000 and on Public toilets by at least £50,000. This overspending will be 
contained within within the Highways and Transportation budgets. 

Environmental Health and Trading Standards 

11. This service area was previously known as Environment Regulatory. Budgets for 
Waste Management, Cemeteries, Crematorium and Travellers Sites have been 
transferred from Highways and Transportation. 

12.  The spending on these services looks very much in line with the budget at present.  It 
is expected that expenditure will exceed budget by £50,000 on Licensing as income 
has not increased in line with running costs. 

13. The Waste Disposal P.F.I contract budget is expected to break even after taking into 
account the virement to Homelessness in 2005/06. The position is worse than 
2004/05 because of the increased proportion of the contract (i.e. up to 25.7% from 
24.77%) being borne by the Council and a reduction in the amount received for P.F.I. 
credits because of a change in basis being used. 

Planning 

14. During the first six months, building control and development fee income is above 
budget by approximately £280,000.  Whilst income continues to be buoyant, volumes 
of applications are falling and income targets are only expected to be exceeded by 
£200,000 for the year.  

15. £304,000 of the 2004/05 Planning delivery grant has been brought forward into 
2005/06.  

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Revenue Budget Monitoring Report for 2005/06 be noted 
subject to the comments which members may wish to make. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

30



Appendix 1

Summary

Actuals to 
Period 6

Budget to 
Period 6

Variance to 
Period 6

2005/06 
Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000

Environmental Health & Trading Stds 3,590 5,449 (1,859) 11,143 

Highways & Transportation 4,229 4,624 (415) 9,143 

Planning 514 1,231 (717) 2,681 

Central Support Costs 1,127 

8,333 11,304 (2,991) 24,094 

31



Areas of Activity
Actuals to 
Period 6

Budget to 
Period 6

Variance to 
Period 6

2005/06 
Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000

Environmental Health & Trading Standards
Operational Budgets

Air Pollution (41) (16) (25) (32)

Landfill and Contaminated Land 39 63 (24) 112 

Water Pollution (4) 0 (4) 1 

Pest Control (46) (37) (9) (52)

Dog Control 6 18 (12) 36 

Animal Health and Welfare (26) 3 (29) 7 

Licensing (262) (152) (110) (304)

Trading Standards 24 25 (1) 49 

SMSS Head of Env. Health/Trading Standards 16 109 (93) 246 

SMSS Commercial team 4 10 (6) 21 

SMSS Pollution Control 14 18 (4) 36 

Travellers  Sites (5) (10) 5 (28)

Cemeteries (10) 6 (16) (13)

Crematorium (134) (145) 11 (305)

Waste Collection (Domestic) 1,316 1,171 145 2,829 

Waste Collection (Trade) (396) (103) (293) (160)

Waste Disposal 1,457 2,994 (1,537) 5,564 

Recycling 152 71 81 227 

Total Operational Budgets 2,104 4,025 (1,921) 8,234 

Staffing Budgets 1,353 1,333 20 2,712 

Staff Related Running Costs 133 91 42 197 

Total Environmental Health & Trading Standards 3,590 5,449 (1,859) 11,143 

32



Areas of Activity
Actuals to 
Period 6

Budget to 
Period 6

Variance to 
Period 6

2005/06 
Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000
Highways and Transportation

Operational Budgets

Highways - Prof. & Engineering 110 164 (54) 113 

Highways - Roads Maintenance 1,280 934 346 2,330 

Highways - NRSWA (33) (59) 26 (117)

Highways - Winter Maintenance 134 162 (28) 530 

Highways - Drainage/Flood Alleviation 34 33 1 139 

Highways - Street Lighting (45) 348 (393) 777 

Highways - Bridgeworks 59 28 31 67 

Highways - Public Rights of Way 102 94 8 223 

Highways - Shopmobility 7 8 (1) 16 

Street Cleansing 453 366 87 789

Public Conveniences 181 138 43 252 

Environmental Support Group/Sustainability 20 19 1 38 

Total Operational Budgets 2,302 2,235 67 5,157 

Staffing Budgets 1,340 1,176 164 2,353 

Staff Related Running Costs 86 97 (11) 297 

Support Services 0 0 0 121 

Total Highways 3,728 3,508 220 7,928 

33



Areas of Activity
Actuals to 
Period 6

Budget to 
Period 6

Variance to 
Period 6

2005/06 
Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000
Operational Budgets
Transportation/Other:

Transport - Prof. & Engineering 45 28 17 (292)

Transport - Public Transport (incl. Rural) 578 882 (304) 876 

Transport - Design/Planning 24 14 10 29 

Transport - Traffic management 5 39 (34) 86 

Transport - Road Safety (7) 2 (9) 3 

Transport - Bus Stations (1) (4) 3 (14)

Transport - Concessionary Travel 60 129 (69) 311 

Highways- Car Parking (690) (576) (114) (1,200)

Highways- DeCrim. of Parking enforcement (235) (289) 54 (449)

Transport - Searches (1) (1) 0 (2)

Highways - S.38 Fees (6) (21) 15 (43)

Director of Environment 21 6 15 (101)

Total Operational Budgets (207) 209 (416) (796)

Staffing Budgets 658 849 (191) 1,698 

Staff Related Running Costs 45 58 (33) 117 

Support Services 5 0 5 196 

Total Transportation 501 1,116 (635) 1,215 

Total Highways & Transportation 4,229 4,624 (415) 9,143 

34



Areas of Activity
Actuals to 
Period 6

Budget to 
Period 6

Variance to 
Period 6

2005/06 
Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000
Environment Planning

Operational Budgets

Building Control:
Building Control Fees (427) (313) (114) (625)
Building Control 6 17 (11) 33 

Development Control:
Development Control Fees (598) (436) (162) (872)
Development Control 107 20 87 40 

Forward Planning 68 14 54 29 

Conservation Grants (48) 21 (69) 43 
Conservation Management (95) 34 (129) 68 

Management and Administration (90) 238 (328) 521 

Total Operational Budgets (1,077) (405) (672) (763)

Staffing Budgets 1,501 1,524 (23) 3,047 

Staff Related Running Costs 90 112 (22) 251 

Support Services 0 0 0 146 

Total Planning 514 1,231 (717) 2,681 

35



36



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 OCTOBER 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bob Barker, Performance Officer on 01432 
260985 

 
BVImprovmentPlanreport0.doc  

 BEST VALUE REVIEWS – IMPLEMENTATION OF 
IMPROVEMENT PLANS 

Report By: Performance Officer 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1 To report the remaining actions and the exceptions to the programmed progress in 
the improvement plans resulting from the reviews of Commercial Enforcement 
Development Control, Public Conveniences, and Public Rights of Way. 

Financial Implications 

2 There has been no variation to the financial implications identified in the individual 
Improvement Plans.  

Background 

3 In response to comments from Members and Officers, the reporting arrangements 
have been developed by consolidating the reports and only reporting on exceptions 
to the programmed actions. That is, where actions have been completed earlier than 
programmed or where the timetable has not been met. 

4 The Best Value Review of Commercial Enforcement has now been completed and 
the Cabinet Member’s draft Improvement Plan is attached as Appendix 1 for 
comment by the Committee before being finalised by the Cabinet Member. 

5 Appendix 2 of this report covers the following improvement plans: 

• Development Control 

• Public Conveniences 

• Public Rights of Way 

6 In response to concerns regarding performance against Best Value Performance 
Indicators relating to Planning Applications determined within specified timescales, 
an action plan has been drawn up. Progress against these actions are attached as 
Appendix 3. 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT Members note and comment on, where appropriate, the 

implementation of the improvement and action plans. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

37



38



APPENDIX 1 
 

BEST VALUE REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL ENFORCEMENT 
 
1 Introduction 
This report is the outcome of the Best Value Review of: 

• Environmental Health Commercial (Food Safety and Health and Safety) 
• Trading Standards 
• Licensing including Taxi Licensing   

 
This improvement plan intends: 

• Identify Outcomes 
• Set key tasks 
• Allocate responsibilities 
• Set “stretching” targets and performance measures and indicators 
• Specify a timetable 
• Identify the financial and environmental impacts of the actions 
• Ensure the implications of the Hampton Review as it progresses should be taken 

into account 
 
2 Preferred Option 
The preferred option as recommended by the Environment Scrutiny Committee and 
endorsed by Strategic Monitoring Committee is to: 
 
 Re-engineer the current services to deliver more efficient services 
 
The service can, through a combination of measures improve its overall efficiency.  The 
use of the Council’s SIPs process and the introduction of a contact centre may enable 
the current relationship between the “Back Office” and the “Front Office” to be re-
engineered.  By re-engineering these services greater capacity should be created to 
deliver services to the public and businesses alike.  Greater capacity also allows the 
service to target more resources on meeting the Council’s Corporate Objectives as well 
as meeting the requirements of the various Regulatory Agencies. 
Whilst this approach does provide scope for greater capacity it will not deliver enough 
capacity for any of the services to deliver comprehensive enforcement services across 
the full range of regulatory services.  This would mean the Council needs to be quite 
specific, not only about what it will do with this extra resource, but also what it will not be 
able to do.  Therefore Service Plans will need to be explicit about which work is high 
priority and which work is lower priority.  The Service Plans will need to be explicit about 
the risks associated with such prioritisation and how such prioritisation fits with the 
Council’s Corporate Objectives and the requirements of Regulatory Agencies. 
 
3 Identified Outcomes   
To achieve these efficiencies the Services will need to undertake the following tasks: 

• Create a Contact Centre to handle incoming service requests. 

39



• Re-engineer the current “Front Office” and “Back Office” functions to maximise 
the principle of dealing with service requests in one transaction and by minimizing 
referrals to the “Back Office”. 

• To maximise the service’s capacity to provide “on-line” forms and advice for 
businesses. 

• Facilitate through the use of IT – flexible working for staff. 
• Create a Divisional recruitment plan to ensure professional staff can be recruited 

and retained by the Division. 
• A Gap Analysis on areas where Risk Assessment has not been undertaken. 
• Undertake a review of possible joint working arrangements with neighbouring 

authorities. 
• Review the current working practices to maximise the potential for joint working 

between the three teams. 
• Review the funding made available through the fee income from Liquor Licensing 

to expand the service and to help deliver an out of hours service (this would be 
cross Division service, including Environmental Protection). 

• Ensure that there is integration of the Regional Consumer Direct Service into the 
Trading Standards Service and the Council’s SIPs programme 

 
In addition the Council will need to take into account the provisions of the Bill announced 
in the Queens Speech to implement the recommendations of the Hampton review. 
Central Government, through the Treasury, are driving the recommendations of the 
Hampton Review at a rapid pace.  This is evidenced by an announcement in the 
Queen’s Speech that a Bill would be introduced later this year to establish a Central 
Trading Standards Agency.  This new Agency will see some restructuring of trading 
Standards Services as a consequence. 
It is clear that the implementation of the Hampton Review will continue apace over the 
next few years and the improvement plan will need to take account of the changes being 
introduced to regulatory Services.  The Government, through the Cabinet Office have 
indicated that the Local Authority Better Regulation Unit (LABREG) is now up already 
developing radical proposals to implement a new approach at a local level. LABREG is 
committed to consultation on these issues and is looking to develop the best possible 
policies for local enforcement consistent with the Hampton principles. Initially LABREG is 
focussing on: 

• Developing a clear set of priorities for local regulatory services  
• Codifying and generalising best practice (including best practice in the area of 

compliance incentives for business)  
• Risk-based enforcement  
• Developing a better performance management system for local regulators  

Clearly many of these issues overlap or have a direct impact on the recommendations in 
the improvement plan. 
 
4 Peer Assessment of Trading Standards 
Also included in this improvement plan are the actions identified following a Peer 
Assessment of Trading Standards. 
 

40



C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

EN
FO

R
C

EM
EN

T 
– 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l /
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

E
H

TS
 S

ta
ff 

m
ov

ed
 to

 
“In

fo
 b

y 
P

ho
ne

” 
 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

cu
st

om
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 

C
re

at
e 

a 
In

fo
 b

y 
P

ho
ne

 C
en

tre
 

to
 h

an
dl

e 
in

co
m

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
qu

es
ts

. 

S
ub

m
it 

to
 IE

G
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

B
y 

15
 S

ep
t 0

5 

C
os

t n
eu

tra
l -

 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

av
in

gs
  

/ n
on

e 

C
us

to
m

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

C
os

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

cu
st

om
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 

R
e-

en
gi

ne
er

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t “

Fr
on

t 
O

ffi
ce

” a
nd

 “B
ac

k 
O

ffi
ce

” 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

of
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 

re
qu

es
ts

 in
 o

ne
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
by

 m
in

im
iz

in
g 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
to

 th
e 

“B
ac

k 
O

ffi
ce

”. 

R
ed

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 C

R
M

 
(a

cr
os

s 
al

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

w
ith

in
 E

H
TS

) 

M
P

 / 
P

N
 / 

S
L 

/ M
H

 / 
R

P
K

 / 
W

as
te

 
m

an
ag

er
 

C
om

m
en

ce
 

1/
9/

05
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 

C
os

t n
eu

tra
l -

 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

av
in

gs
  

/ n
on

e 

C
us

to
m

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

C
os

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

re
sp

on
si

ve
ne

ss
 

To
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e’

s 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 “o
n-

lin
e”

 
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 C

R
M

 
(a

cr
os

s 
al

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

w
ith

in
 E

H
TS

) 

M
P

 / 
P

N
 / 

S
L 

/ M
H

 / 
R

P
K

 / 
W

as
te

 
m

an
ag

er
 

C
om

m
en

ce
 

1/
9/

05
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

 

S
pe

nd
 to

 s
av

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
R

es
po

ns
iv

e 
ne

ss
 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

cu
st

om
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

re
sp

on
si

ve
ne

ss
 

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 IT
 –

 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 fo

r s
ta

ff.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
pa

rti
ci

pa
nt

s 
le

ad
 b

y 
D

iv
is

io
n 

m
ov

in
g 

to
 

P
lo

ug
h 

La
ne

 

M
P

 / 
P

N
 / 

S
L 

/ M
H

 / 
R

P
K

 / 
W

as
te

 
m

an
ag

er
 

C
om

m
en

ce
 

1/
9/

05
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
 

R
ed

uc
ed

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

/ r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 tr
av

el
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

C
os

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

R
es

po
ns

iv
en

e
ss

 

41



Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l /
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

 
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t f

le
xi

bl
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

(a
cr

os
s 

al
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 

E
H

TS
) 

 
 

R
ed

uc
ed

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

/ r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 tr
av

el
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

C
os

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

R
es

po
ns

iv
en

e
ss

 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

  
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 

st
af

f t
ur

no
ve

r 

To
 c

re
at

e 
a 

D
iv

is
io

na
l 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t p

la
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

ta
ff 

ca
n 

be
 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
an

d 
re

ta
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n.

 

Im
pl

em
en

t m
ar

ke
t 

fo
rc

es
 / 

su
pp

le
m

en
t. 

S
uc

ce
ss

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
U

til
is

e 
S

R
D

s 
/ 

im
pl

em
en

t c
ar

ee
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

os
ts

 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

de
 jo

b 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
up

po
rt 

th
ro

ug
h 

tra
in

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

pa
ym

en
t o

f 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 fe

es
. 

D
ev

el
op

 s
ec

on
dm

en
t 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

in
te

rn
al

ly
 a

nd
 w

ith
 

pa
rtn

er
s.

  
E

st
ab

lis
h 

m
or

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

w
ar

ds
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

f 
st

af
f i

n 
“d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
re

cr
ui

t” 
po

st
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

M
P

 / 
P

N
 / 

S
L 

/ M
H

 / 
R

P
K

 / 
W

as
te

 
m

an
ag

er
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 –
 

pr
od

uc
e 

do
cu

m
en

t b
y 

30
/1

2/
05

 

C
os

t s
av

in
g 

S
ta

ff 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

42



Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l /
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

TS
O

s 
an

d 
E

H
O

s 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

pr
id

e 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

A
 G

ap
 A

na
ly

si
s 

be
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
on

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rta

ke
n.

  T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

ne
ed

s 
to

 
be

 d
ov

et
ai

le
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

B
et

te
r 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

U
ni

t (
LA

B
R

E
G

) 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

H
am

pt
on

 
R

ev
ie

w
.  

W
or

k 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
na

tio
na

l 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 n

at
io

na
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
ho

 c
on

tro
l t

he
se

 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

na
ly

si
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

re
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 N
at

io
na

l P
rio

rit
ie

s 
be

in
g 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

LA
B

R
E

G
 

D
iv

is
io

na
l 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

Fi
ni

sh
 in

te
rn

al
 

an
al

ys
is

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

w
or

k 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 

na
tio

na
l 

tim
et

ab
le

. 

A
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e 
th

is
 

is
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

– 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ha

ve
 in

di
ct

ed
 th

at
 

so
m

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 
do

 n
ot

 s
pe

nd
 

en
ou

gh
 m

on
ey

 
on

 re
gu

la
to

ry
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ly
 

pe
rfo

rm
 p

oo
rly

.  
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 
da

ta
 is

 p
oo

r a
nd

 
is

 p
ro

ba
bl

y 
st

ro
ng

es
t f

or
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t 
of

 re
vi

se
d 

B
V

16
6 

(p
ar

t o
f 

LA
B

R
E

G
 w

or
k 

pl
an

) 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f p

os
si

bl
e 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rin
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
. 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 J
oi

nt
 

W
or

ki
ng

 m
ay

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 

D
iv

is
io

na
l 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

 
C

os
t S

av
in

gs
 

C
os

t o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t w
or

ki
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

th
re

e 
te

am
s.

 

C
om

pa
re

 / 
co

lla
te

 
ba

ck
 o

ffi
ce

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

M
P

 / 
S

L 
/ 

P
N

 
A

fte
r t

he
 re

-
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

S
av

in
gs

 
C

os
t o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

43



Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l /
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

S
ta

ff 
O

pi
ni

on
 

S
ur

ve
y 

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

fe
e 

in
co

m
e 

fro
m

 L
iq

uo
r L

ic
en

si
ng

 to
 e

xp
an

d 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
to

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 
an

 o
ut

 o
f h

ou
rs

 s
er

vi
ce

 (t
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

cr
os

s 
D

iv
is

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n)
. 

S
er

vi
ce

 re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
ns

iti
on

al
 p

ha
se

 o
f 

th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ct
 

20
03

 

S
L/

R
K

/ 
A

E
T 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 S

av
in

g 
C

us
to

m
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
C

on
su

m
er

 D
ire

ct
 S

er
vi

ce
 in

to
 

th
e 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 S

er
vi

ce
 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

IP
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

S
ta

rt 
up

 o
f t

he
 

R
eg

io
na

l C
on

su
m

er
 

D
ire

ct
 C

al
l C

en
tre

 
(b

ei
ng

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 

C
ov

en
try

) 

M
P

P
 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 S

av
in

g 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

on
su

m
er

 
A

dv
ic

e 
C

al
ls

 
de

al
t w

ith
 b

y 
C

on
su

m
er

 
D

ire
ct

 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 B
ill

 
an

no
un

ce
d 

in
 th

e 
Q

ue
en

s 
S

pe
ec

h 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 
H

am
pt

on
 re

vi
ew

. 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 e

ffe
ct

s 
A

E
T 

Fi
ni

sh
 

30
/0

4/
06

 
To

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

To
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 

    

44



Pe
er

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

fo
r T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

R
eg

ul
ar

 u
pd

at
es

 a
nd

 b
rie

fin
gs

 to
 D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 

M
em

be
r w

ith
 H

O
S

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
s 

 

C
ab

in
et

 re
po

rts
 to

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

 

S
ec

ur
e 

M
em

be
rs

/d
ire

ct
or

s 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 a
t T

S
I 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e/

Y
ea

r A
he

ad
 S

ym
po

si
um

 
 

M
em

be
r t

o 
vi

si
t o

ffi
ce

/w
or

k 
sh

ad
ow

 
 

H
 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t w

ith
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
, D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 

el
ec

te
d 

M
em

be
r i

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 

S
er

vi
ce

 

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 b

y 
H

.O
.S

 a
t T

S
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

ee
tin

gs
. 

 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 / 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
er

vi
ce

 

Fr
om

 M
ay

 
20

05
 –

 in
 

pr
og

re
ss

 

 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pe
te

nc
ie

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

36
0°

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

 
H

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

to
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 h

ow
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
it 

is
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 M

an
ag

em
en

t D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 

S
ep

t 2
00

5 
- 

20
07

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
S

R
D

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
tim

ef
ra

m
e 

H
 

E
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 a
 w

id
er

 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

w
he

n 
fo

rm
ul

at
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gy
. 

B
al

an
ce

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

w
he

n 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 a
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

us
in

g 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, L
oc

al
 

A
re

a 
Fo

ru
m

s/
C

iti
ze

ns
 P

an
el

 fo
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
se

tti
ng

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

gu
la

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fo

rm
ul

at
io

n 
of

 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gy
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

/Q
M

 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ro

ce
ss

 0
6/

07
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r /

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
5 

 

45



Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

H
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
re

le
va

nt
 

po
lic

ie
s,

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 

pl
an

s 
to

 lo
ca

l 
co

ns
um

er
s,

 c
on

su
m

er
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 a

nd
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 

P
ub

lis
h 

on
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 T
S

 W
eb

si
te

 
 

 
 

C
us

to
m

er
/B

us
i

ne
ss

 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

LA
F’

s 
/C

us
to

m
er

 
P

an
el

 

H
 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 is
 

no
t r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 
as

se
ss

ed
  f

or
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 

6 
m

on
th

ly
 re

vi
ew

 m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 P
TS

O
’s

 
 

TS
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
05

 
6-

M
on

th
ly

 
 

 

M
 

In
vo

lv
e 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
st

af
f i

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 p

la
ns

 

A
nn

ua
l S

ta
ff 

aw
ay

 d
ay

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

 
Tr

ad
in

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
M

an
ag

er
 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ro

ce
ss

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
5 

S
ta

ff 
O

pi
ni

on
 

S
ur

ve
y 

an
d 

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
D

riv
er

 re
su

lts
 

H
 

E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f 

fo
rm

al
/in

fo
rm

al
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 

E
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

/H
os

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
 

H
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
at

a 
re

po
rti

ng
 fo

r T
S

S
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 is
 a

cc
ur

at
e,

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 a
lig

ns
 

w
ith

 N
P

F 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

E
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 S
of

tw
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 / 
 

Lc
&

Ta
 

M
ay

 2
00

5 
to

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

M
 

U
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

gi
na

l c
os

ts
 o

f 
S

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
ns

 to
 h

el
p 

se
rv

ic
e 

l
i

d

A
ct

iv
ity

 b
as

ed
 c

os
t a

na
ly

si
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
A

ct
iv

ity
 b

as
ed

 
co

st
in

g 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
us

ed
 to

 

Fi
na

nc
e 

O
ffi

ce
r /

 
Fi

na
nc

e 
S

ec
tio

n 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ro

ce
ss

   
06

/0
7

O
C

T

 

46



Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

pr
io

rit
is

at
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
dr

iv
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 

06
/0

7 
O

C
T 

20
05

 

M
 

E
va

lu
at

e 
ne

w
 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 th

at
 

m
ig

ht
 im

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

fle
xi

bl
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 n

ew
 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

U
se

 o
f I

C
T 

to
 

as
si

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 / 
P

ts
o’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

/

O
ng

oi
ng

 
  

L 
M

ak
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 m
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 to

 
pr

es
en

t n
on

-u
se

rs
 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

su
rv

ey
 n

on
-u

se
rs

.  
U

se
 o

f 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
/In

fo
 S

ho
ps

 
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

/Q
M

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

 

C
on

su
lt 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
 

M
 

S
et

 c
le

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

S
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 b

as
ed

 
on

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

U
se

 o
f L

A
F’

s/
C

us
to

m
er

 B
us

in
es

s 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
ys

 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

 / 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

Te
am

 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
cu

st
om

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
 

 H
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 C
us

to
m

er
 

an
d 

B
us

in
es

s 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
al

ig
n 

w
ith

 N
P

F 
re

po
rti

ng
 

fo
rm

at
 

A
lig

n 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
s 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 / 
Q

M
 

N
ov

 2
00

5 
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
cu

st
om

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
 

47



Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t /

 F
in

is
h 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

H
 

R
ec

or
di

ng
, r

ev
ie

w
 &

 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

/ 
co

m
pl

im
en

ts
 / 

co
m

m
en

ts
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 C

or
po

ra
te

 C
R

M
 

sy
st

em
 fo

r r
ec

or
di

ng
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 C

om
m

en
ts

, 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
&

 C
om

pl
im

en
ts

 

 
I T

 S
ec

tio
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

5 
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
cu

st
om

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
  

M
 

S
ta

ff 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 o

f 
ac

tio
ns

 / 
ou

tc
om

es
 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 D

riv
er

 
an

d 
 S

ta
ff 

O
pi

ni
on

 
S

ur
ve

y.
 

 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
te

am
 m

ee
tin

g 
ag

en
da

 it
em

./ 
Te

am
 

A
w

ay
 D

ay
  

 
Tr

ad
in

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
M

an
ag

er
 / 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

A
pr

il 
20

06
 

S
ta

ff 
pe

rc
ep

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
D

riv
er

 &
 S

O
S

 

P
ro

-fo
rm

a 
to

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 
 

A
ll 

S
ta

ff 

U
se

 o
f p

ro
-fo

rm
a 

by
 a

ll 
st

af
f u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 s

uc
h 

ac
tiv

ity
 

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 
pr

o-
fo

rm
as

  

L 
Ta

lk
s,

 e
xh

ib
iti

on
s 

an
d 

se
m

in
ar

s 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

by
 

th
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 to
 b

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
/ 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

D
at

a 
us

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 / 

im
pr

ov
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 / 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Te

am
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
  

Tr
en

ds
 to

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
K

ey
 d

at
a 

to
 b

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
ke

d 
 

Ta
rg

et
s 

to
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
 

H
 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
to

 b
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
N

P
F 

&
 P

ee
r R

ev
ie

w
 

M
od

el
 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 b

y 
E

H
 &

 T
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 
m

on
th

ly
 

 

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

M
an

ag
er

 / 
E

h 
&

 T
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

. 

 

48



A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
ns

 fr
om

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

  

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

de
si

gn
 

ad
vi

ce
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
pe

ed
 o

f 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 a

nd
 

re
sp

on
si

ve
ne

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

cu
rr

en
t H

ig
hw

ay
 D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
de

 

A
do

pt
 M

an
ua

l f
or

 
S

tre
et

s 
w

he
n 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 D
fT

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 

Te
am

 
Le

ad
er

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t

at
io

n 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
 

D
at

e 
re

vi
se

d 
to

 J
ul

y 
20

05
 

 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

by
 

O
w

en
 W

ill
ia

m
s.

 
D

ra
ft 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
N

ov
em

be
r w

ith
 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

du
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5.
 

B
V

10
9 

– 
D

et
er

m
in

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

w
ith

in
 8

/1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
P

rio
rit

y 
– 

20
03

/5
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

Te
nb

ur
y 

R
oa

d,
 

B
ro

m
ya

rd
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 
fo

r S
um

m
er

 2
00

5.
  

A
cc

el
er

at
ed

 c
lo

su
re

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
. 

H
O

S
 

P
ro

pe
rty

 

To
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
20

04
/5

 

Te
nb

ur
y 

R
oa

d 
in

 
pr

og
re

ss
. 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

be
in

g 
fin

al
is

ed
. 

P
ub

lic
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
in

di
ca

to
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ig
ht

s 
O

f W
ay

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
r(

s)
 

B
y 

w
he

n 
R

ev
is

ed
 D

at
es

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

H
ig

h 
In

cr
ea

se
 

th
ro

ug
hp

ut
 

of
 D

iv
er

si
on

 O
rd

er
s 

R
es

ea
rc

h,
 d

ev
is

e 
an

d 
w

rit
e 

a 
fa

st
-tr

ac
k 

m
et

ho
d 

fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r D

iv
er

si
on

 
O

rd
er

s 

S
ta

ff 
tim

e 
– 

po
ss

ib
le

 
of

fs
et

 t
hr

ou
gh

 i
nc

om
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n.
 N

ow
 p

ar
t 

of
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

R
H

/M
M

 
1/

7/
02

 –
 D

at
e 

re
vi

se
d 

to
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

04
 

S
tra

te
gy

 to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r. 

 

 

49



50



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 3

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tr

ol
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
  

A
ct

io
ns

  
M

ile
st

on
e/

Ta
rg

et
/W

he
n 

B
y 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

r(
s)

* a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

Pr
og

re
ss

 to
 e

nd
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 0

5 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

G
IS

 p
ro

je
ct

 

P
ub

lis
h 

de
ta

ils
 o

f M
V

M
 b

as
ed

 p
la

nn
in

g 
re

gi
st

er
 o

n 
lin

e 
Im

pr
ov

e 
“P

en
dl

et
on

” s
co

re
 a

nd
 m

ee
t 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t s

 o
f B

V
P

I 2
05

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

05
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

U
se

r 
G

ro
up

   
 D

C
 M

an
ag

er
 

IC
T 

D
at

a 
cl

ea
ns

in
g 

an
d 

va
lid

at
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 g

o 
liv

e 
da

te
 in

 e
ar

ly
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

R
ec

or
d 

&
 D

oc
um

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
 

Im
pl

em
en

t c
or

po
ra

te
 E

R
D

D
M

S
  

C
ap

tu
re

 h
is

to
ric

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tro
l r

ec
or

ds
. 

R
e-

en
gi

ne
er

 D
C

 a
nd

 B
C

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

E
ar

ly
 2

00
6

IC
T 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
C

 &
 B

C
 M

an
ag

er
s 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

U
se

r 
G

ro
up

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 E

R
D

M
S

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n 
ho

ld
. 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

U
K

 P
la

nn
in

g 
on

 li
ne

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

ha
nd

lin
g 

pa
ck

ag
e 

be
in

g 
ev

al
ua

te
d.

 

Fu
lly

 s
ta

ff 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
H

oS
 

D
C

 M
an

ag
er

 
D

C
 T

ea
m

 L
ea

de
rs

 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 3

 v
ac

an
ci

es
 in

 D
C

. 1
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
ad

ve
rti

se
d 

an
d 

2 
aw

ai
tin

g 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
au

th
or

is
at

io
n.

 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
re

gi
st

er
 o

f e
xt

er
na

l c
on

tra
ct

or
s 

/ s
el

f e
m

pl
oy

ed
 s

ta
ff 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
D

C
 M

an
ag

er
 T

ea
m

 
Le

ad
er

s 
/ C

A
D

P
O

G
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
up

da
te

s 
to

 C
A

D
P

O
G

 re
gi

st
er

 
of

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
st

af
f. 

C
on

si
de

r p
ay

in
g 

re
ta

in
er

s 
to

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5
 

C
on

si
de

re
d 

bu
t f

ou
nd

 n
ot

 to
 b

e 
go

od
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 

P
ay

m
en

t o
f M

ar
ke

t F
or

ce
s 

S
up

pl
em

en
ts

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

H
oS

 
H

ea
d 

of
 H

R
 

M
ay

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
-c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t r

ou
nd

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

C
re

at
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

tra
in

ee
 p

os
ts

 
 A

ug
 2

00
5 

H
oS

 
D

C
 M

an
ag

er
 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
R

 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t f
or

 c
ar

ee
r g

ra
de

d 
po

st
s 

to
 

en
ab

le
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
t e

nt
ry

 le
ve

l 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
su

ffi
ci

en
t s

ta
ff 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 
de

liv
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
  

 

V
is

it 
sc

ho
ol

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
ca

re
er

s 
Ju

ne
 

20
05

, 
M

ar
ch

 
20

06
 

D
C

 M
an

ag
er

 / 
P

er
so

nn
el

 
D

C
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

51



A
ct

io
ns

  
M

ile
st

on
e/

Ta
rg

et
/W

he
n 

B
y 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

r(
s)

* a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

Pr
og

re
ss

 to
 e

nd
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 0

5 

C
ur

re
nt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

n 
co

ve
ra

ge
 fo

r H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
B

V
P

I 2
00

 
E

ar
ly

/m
id

 
20

06
 

H
oS

 
Fo

rw
ar

d 
P

la
nn

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

 

U
D

P
 In

qu
iry

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 in

 J
un

e.
 

In
sp

ec
to

rs
 re

po
rt 

aw
ai

te
d 

be
fo

re
 m

id
 

20
06

.  
U

D
P

 a
do

pt
io

n 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

la
te

 
20

06
. 

R
e-

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r t
he

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 

S
ep

t 2
00

5 
H

oS
 

D
C

 M
an

ag
er

 
D

C
 T

ea
m

 L
ea

de
rs

 

C
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 o

ve
rh

au
l o

f 
cu

rr
en

t D
C

 p
ra

ct
is

e 
eg

 d
es

pa
tc

h 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 n

ot
ic

es
 

Im
pl

em
en

t &
 u

til
is

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
IS

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
05

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 IC
T 

C
or

p 
G

IS
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fro
m

 e
ar

ly
 

N
ov

em
be

r t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
te

rn
et

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
se

ar
ch

es
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
M

V
M

 2
0/

20
 re

co
rd

s 

D
oc

um
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
/in

te
rn

al
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
ba

ck
 o

ffi
ce

 

M
ar

ch
 

20
06

 
 

S
ee

 c
om

m
en

ts
 re

: U
K

 P
la

nn
in

g 

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

05
 

 
Le

ve
l 2

 in
te

gr
at

io
n 

w
ith

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

or
ta

l 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 n
ow

 
be

in
g 

re
ce

iv
ed

. 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

by
 e

m
ai

l 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
05

 
 

M
ea

ns
 o

f e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

ca
pt

ur
e 

of
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
eg

 
U

K
 P

la
nn

in
g 

be
fo

re
 e

-c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

po
ss

ib
le

. 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
 

th
ro

ug
h:

 
 

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 a
re

a 
te

am
 a

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

H
oS

 
D

C
 M

an
ag

er
 

D
C

 T
ea

m
 L

ea
de

rs
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 s

ta
tis

tic
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
es

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
pe

rfo
rm

er
s 

Ju
ly

 2
00

5 
H

oS
 

D
C

 M
an

ag
er

 &
 T

ea
m

 
Le

ad
er

s 

D
C

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ga

th
er

 fr
om

 
ot

he
r A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 

V
is

it 
ot

he
r A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ho
 o

pe
ra

te
 a

 
si

ng
le

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
Ju

ly
 2

00
5 

M
ar

ie
 R

os
en

th
al

 / 
M

em
be

r 
/ H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

rr
an

ge
 

52



A
ct

io
ns

  
M

ile
st

on
e/

Ta
rg

et
/W

he
n 

B
y 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

r(
s)

* a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

Pr
og

re
ss

 to
 e

nd
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 0

5 

C
on

du
ct

 s
ta

ff 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

n 
is

su
es

 ra
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ta
ff 

O
pi

ni
on

 S
ur

ve
y 

A
gr

ee
d 

ac
tio

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ee

tin
g 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5
H

ea
d 

of
 P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

on
si

de
re

d 
an

d 
di

sc
us

se
d 

at
 m

on
th

ly
 

D
C

 s
ta

ff 
m

ee
tin

g 

Id
en

tif
y 

tra
in

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
in

 
S

R
D

’s
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r S

R
D

s 
M

ay
 2

00
5 

D
C

 T
ea

m
 le

ad
er

s 
O

ng
oi

ng
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 S
R

D
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 

R
ev

is
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r S
10

6 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 
A

gr
ee

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ith

 le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

ov
 2

00
5 

H
oS

 
D

C
 M

an
ag

er
 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

P
os

si
bl

e 
re

po
rt 

to
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

on
 2

5th
 N

ov
em

be
r 

  

53



54



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 OCTOBER 2005 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Graham Dunhill, Director of Environment 
 on 01432 260041 

 
PIsforOct2005Committeereport0.doc 

 MONITORING OF 2005/2006 PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS – APRIL 2005 TO SEPTEMBER 2005 

Report By: Director of Environment 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the exceptions to the targeted progress made by the 
Environment Directorate for the six months April to September 2005 towards 
achieving the performance indicators / targets which appear in the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and are reported bi-monthly. 

Financial Implications 

2. All expenditure in respect of performance indicators / targets is from approved 
budgets. 

Content 

3. The report of exceptions to the targeted performance is attached at Appendix 1 for 
Members’ consideration. 

4. Performance against all other indicators is within 10% of target. In addition 
performance, where ascertainable, against those indicators which are reported 
annually also appears to be on target. 

5. Also included, for comparative purposes, are the targets and out-turns for 2004/5, the 
targets for 2005/6 and the performance from April to July 2005. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the exceptions monitoring report in relation to the 2005/2006 
local and national performance indicators be noted, subject to 
any comments which Members may wish to raise. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

55



56



P
Is

 2
00

5/
6 

 - 
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

pr
il 

to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 

 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
N

at
io

na
l: 

 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

04
/5

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/6

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

A
pr

 - 
Ju

ly
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
A

pr
 - 

Se
pt

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
V

19
9a

 
Th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 re

le
va

nt
 la

nd
 a

nd
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
) t

ha
t i

s 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
de

po
si

ts
 o

f l
itt

er
 

an
d 

de
tri

tu
s 

th
at

 fa
ll 

be
lo

w
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

l 

27
%

 
25

%
 

12
%

 
14

%
 

S
tre

tc
h 

Ta
rg

et
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ne

go
tia

te
d 

in
 L

P
S

A
2G

 

H
IG

H
W

A
YS

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 
N

at
io

na
l: 

 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

04
/5

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/6

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

A
pr

 - 
Ju

ly
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
A

pr
 - 

Se
pt

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

B
V

10
0 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ro

ad
 w

or
ks

 p
er

 k
ilo

m
et

re
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

se
ns

iti
ve

 ro
ad

 
3.

18
61

 
1.

1 
0.

0 
0.

0 
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

00
5/

6 
in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 J

oi
ne

d 
U

p 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
 

 
Fa

ir 
A

cc
es

s 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

16
5 

 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f p

ed
es

tri
an

 c
ro

ss
in

gs
 w

ith
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
. 

93
.1

%
 

99
%

 

65
%

 

30
%

 
A

dd
iti

on
 w

or
k 

to
 c

om
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r f
ai

lu
re

 o
f 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
ro

ad
 

re
su

rfa
ci

ng
 in

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ta
ge

 

30
%

 

O
rd

er
 w

ith
 H

JS
 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 
w

or
ks

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ou
tc

om
e.

  
O

ns
ite

 w
or

ks
 

im
m

in
en

t  

B
V

P
I d

ef
in

iti
on

 a
m

en
de

d 
– 

re
vi

se
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 2

00
5/

06
  

 

B
V

17
8 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l l
en

gt
h 

of
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r r
ig

ht
s 

of
 

w
ay

 th
at

 w
er

e 
ea

sy
 to

 u
se

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 –
 C

S
S

/C
A

 
M

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 u

se
d 

to
 m

ea
su

re
 

45
%

 
47

%
 

54
.6

%
  

 

54
.6

%
 

Th
is

 is
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 

2.
5%

 ra
nd

om
 n

et
w

or
k 

su
rv

ey
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

M
ay

 
20

05
 s

ec
on

d 
2.

5%
 s

ur
ve

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
N

ov
 2

00
5.

 

57



P
Is

 2
00

5/
6 

 - 
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

pr
il 

to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 

 

 Lo
ca

l: 
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

04
/5

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/6

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

A
pr

 - 
Ju

ly
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
A

pr
 - 

Se
pt

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
K

ilo
m

et
re

s 
of

 ru
ra

l f
oo

tw
ay

s 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 
1.

5k
m

  
1.

0k
m

 
2.

01
km

 
2.

01
km

 
In

cl
ud

ed
 R

om
an

 R
oa

d 
sc

he
m

e 

 
%

 o
f d

ay
s 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
cl

os
ed

 
2.

15
%

 
1.

1%
 

1.
4%

 
3.

1%
 

P
ro

bl
em

 W
ith

 li
gh

tin
g 

in
 

E
as

t S
tre

et
 / 

U
ni

on
 

W
al

k 
pr

ob
le

m
 w

ith
 

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 n
ow

 re
m

ov
ed

  

 
N

um
be

r o
f P

en
al

ty
 C

ha
rg

e 
N

ot
ic

es
 is

su
ed

 –
 a

m
en

de
d 

in
di

ca
to

r 
23

,5
62

 
23

,0
00

 
6,

48
9 

9,
63

5 
B

el
ow

 ta
rg

et
 a

t t
hi

s 
st

ag
e 

du
e 

to
 s

ta
ff 

sh
or

ta
ge

s 
an

d 
am

en
de

d 
sh

ift
 p

at
te

rn
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

in
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s.
 

 
N

et
w

or
k 

Se
rv

ic
ea

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
of

 
m

aj
or

 
ro

ad
w

or
k 

sc
he

m
es

 
th

at
 

ov
er

-r
un

 
th

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

. 

 

20
%

 
0%

 
 

40
%

 
 

 
B

rid
ge

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

um
be

r o
f b

rid
ge

s 
in

sp
ec

te
d 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 in

te
gr

ity
 (t

w
o 

ye
ar

 
ro

ta
). 

 

42
8 

39
5 

70
 

28
0 

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
to

 fi
ni

sh
 la

te
 

A
ut

um
n 

 

58



P
Is

 2
00

5/
6 

 - 
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

pr
il 

to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5 

 

 PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 
N

at
io

na
l: 

 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

04
/5

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/6

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

A
pr

 - 
Ju

ly
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
A

pr
 - 

Se
pt

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ou

tc
om

e 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

10
9a

  
D

et
er

m
in

e 
m

aj
or

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 in
du

st
ria

l a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 

 

46
%

 
60

%
  

41
%

  
44

%
 

B
V

10
9b

  
D

et
er

m
in

e 
m

in
or

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 in
du

st
ria

l a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

  

 

51
%

 
65

%
  

56
%

 
53

%
 

B
V

10
9c

  
D

et
er

m
in

e 
ot

he
r a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

  

 

64
%

 
80

%
 

64
%

  
67

%
 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

is
su

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

fo
rm

ul
at

ed
 a

nd
 in

 
pr

og
re

ss
. 

 Lo
ca

l: 
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
20

04
/5

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

05
/6

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

A
pr

 - 
Ju

ly
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
A

pr
 - 

Se
pt

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 in
va

lid
 o

n 
re

ce
ip

t  
(9

19
 o

ut
 o

f 3
68

6)
 

 

30
%

 
<2

5%
 

 
38

%
 

S
am

pl
in

g 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

 

59



60


